A COMPREHENSIVE REVIEW ON BIOGENIC SYNTHESIS, CHARACTERIZATION AND APPLICATION OF METAL NANOPARTICLES

A DISSERTATION SUBMITTED IN PARTIAL FULFILLMENT OF THE REQUIREMENTS FOR THE AWARD OF THE DEGREE OF

MASTER OF TECHNOLOGY IN NANOSCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY

Submitted by: ARKOPRATIM CHAKRABORTY (2K20/NST/02)

Under the supervision of Dr. MOHAN SINGH MEHATA



DEPARTMENT OF APPLIED PHYSICS DELHI TECHNOLOGICAL UNIVERSITY (Formerly Delhi College Of Engineering) Bawana Road, Delhi-110041

MAY, 2022

CANDIDATE'S DECLARATION

I, Arkopratim Chakraborty, 2K20/NST/02 of M.Tech. Nanoscience and Technology, hereby declare that the project Dissertation titled "*A Comprehensive Review On Biogenic Synthesis, Characterization And Application Of Metal Nanoparticles*" which is submitted by me to the Department of Applied Physics, Delhi Technological University, Delhi in partial fulfillment of the requirement for the award of the degree of Master of Technology, is original and not copied from any source without proper citation. This work has not previously formed the basis for the award of any Degree, Diploma Associateship, Fellowship or other similar title or recognition.

Place: Delhi Date:

ARKOPRATIM CHAKRABORTY

CERTIFICATE

I hereby certify the Project Dissertation titled "*A Comprehensive Review On Biogenic Synthesis, Characterization And Application Of Metal Nanoparticles*" which is submitted by Arkopratim Chakraborty, 2K20/NST/02, Department of Applied Physics, Delhi Technological University, Delhi in partial fulfillment of the requirement for the award of the degree of Master of Technology, is a record of the project work carried out by the student under my supervision. To the best of my knowledge this work has not been submitted in part or full for any degree or Diploma to this University or elsewhere.

Place: Delhi

Date:

DR. MOHAN SINGH MEHATA SUPERVISOR ASSISTANT PROFESSOR DEPARTMENT OF APPLIED PHYSICS

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

I would like to express my sincere gratitude to the Department of Applied Physics, Delhi Technological University and to my supervisor Dr. M.S. Mehata for all the support and guidance he has provided during my entire thesis. I'm also thankful to the Head of Department, Prof. Rinku Sharma and all the faculty members of the Applied Physics department for all the support and guidance.

ABSTRACT

Metallic nanoparticles have unique properties that depend on their composition and structure. Achieving mastery over the synthesis of bi/trimetallic nanoparticles has been one of the greatest accomplishments in recent years. This is a matter of interest because of the fact that, altering the properties of these nanoparticles can prove beneficial for wide arrays of technological use. The goal of this thesis has been to present a comprehensive review of the latest research and advancements made regarding bi and trimetallic nanoparticles. This begins with a brief introduction describing the need of the synthesis of nanoparticles from eco-friendly methodologies, followed by which the process of synthesis from plants, microorganisms and waste material is discussed taking reference from selected articles that best represent the idea. The properties of these alloy nanoparticles are also discussed in terms of their optical, catalysis and magnetism. Finally, concluding this review by discussing their applications in medical fields.

CONTENTS

Candidate's Declaration	
Certificate	iii
Acknowledgement	
Abstract	v
Contents	vi
List of Abbreviations	
1. Introduction	9
2. Synthesis of Nanoparticles	10
2.1 Synthesis from Plants	10
2.2 Synthesis from Microorganisms	11
2.3 Synthesis from Waste	12
3. Characterization and Properties of Alloy Nanoparticles	
3.1 Characterization	14
3.2 Properties of Alloy Nanoparticles	15
3.2.1 Optical Properties	15
2.3.2 Catalytic Properties	16

3.2.3 Magnetic Properties		16
4. Application of Alloy Nanoparticles		18
4.1	Imaging	18
4.2	Photocatalytic Applications	18
4.3	Drug Delivery	19
4.4	Cancer Therapy	20
4.5	Antibacterial Activity	21
Conclusion and Future Perspectives		22
Refe	rences	23

vii

LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS

- 1. **NPs** Nanoparticles.
- 2. UV-Vis Ultraviolet-Visible.
- 3. **SPR** Surface Plasmon Resonance.
- 4. TEM Transmission Electron Microscopy.
- 5. **XRD** X-Ray Diffraction.
- 6. FTIR Fourier Transform Infrared .
- 7. LSPR Localized Surface Plasmon Resonance.
- 8. MRI Magnetic Resonance Imaging.
- 9. CT-Scan Computed Tomography Scan.
- 10. MCAs Multimodal Contrast Agents.
- 11. SERS Surface Enhanced Raman Scattering.
- 12. **EPR** Enhanced Permeability and Retention.
- 13. E.coli Escherichia coli.

1. INTRODUCTION

Metal nanoparticles, due to their unique catalytic, optical, and structural properties have attracted a lot of attention. These bimetallic/trimetallic nanoparticles can be used extensively in a wide spectrum of technological applications such as – nanoelectronic devices, sensors, catalysts, etc. All the various methods of synthesizing these nanoparticles have faced similar drawbacks of toxicity of reactants and generation of potentially hazardous by-products. Biogenic Synthesis is one of the major alternative routes available for the synthesis of nanomaterials in the present day, since it uses nontoxic reactants that are derived from biological sources ranging from unicellular organisms to complex plants. Usage of the biogenic process for synthesis purposes is advantageous because of its easy availability and requires a very rudimentary setup. These methods also have the least probability of generation of toxic by-products.

The aim of the thesis has been to highlight the advances made in recent years regarding the synthesis of bi/trimetallic nanoparticles, their properties and their application in medical fields. This thesis has been completed by noting recent developments by selecting articles that best represent the concept.

2. SYNTHESIS OF NANOPARTICLES

2.1 SYNTHESIS FROM PLANTS

Recently, plants are chosen as a viable choice for the synthesis of nanoparticles. This method uses different parts of the plants such as roots, stems, seeds, leaves, flowers and their extract for manufacturing the nanoparticles. The method is stable and eco-friendly, and the nanoparticles thus created have different biomedical and environmental applications. Primary constituents including proteins, organic acids, polysaccharides and other metabolites like polyphenols, flavonoids, alkaloids and others that are present in plants acts like reducing agents and stabilizing factors.[1,2] Nanoparticles such as Ag-Ni, Ag-Co, Pt-Cu, and Au-Ag have been produced from the leaf extract of African arrowroot, Alchornea-laxiflora (Lowveld bead-string), Azadirachta-indica, Cacumen-Platycladi, Palm and Mirabilis jalapa, whereas trimetallic nanoparticles such as Au-Ag-Sr and Fe-Ag-Pt were synthesized from the root extract of coriander and Platycodon.[3,4,5] Also, gold-silver alloy nanoparticles were produced from the fruit extract of Chinese wolfberry.[6,7]

The plant extract preparation begins with cleaning and sanitizing the plant of any dust or foreign materials present with distilled water. They may be dried and crushed to form a coarse powder [8,9], or the clean plants are boiled or may be subjected to some sort of irradiation. The widely used solvent for preparation of extract is water, but methanol can be more beneficial.[10]

The synthesis of alloy nanoparticles involves the simultaneous reduction of all the metal ions by the plant extract. Equimolar solutions of all the metal salts are added into a

certain amount of extract and is subjected to different excitation like stirring or irradiation. For instance, Au-Ag NPs were synthesized by adding R.hypocrateriformis extract (20 ml) to an equimolar mixture of HAuCl4 and AgNO3. Again, NPs were produced by the aqueous mixture of AgNO3 and HAuCl4 and aqueous extract of mahogany, which was continuously stirred.[10]

The formation of NPs can be confirmed by the colour changes in the solution over time. Another method is by studying absorbance and Surface Plasmon Resonance of the solution at different intervals [8,10].

2.2 SYNTHESIS FROM MICROORGANISMS

For reasons like swift development, affordable costs of culturing and easy control and manipulation of the growth environment, and few species even having the ability to to suppress the toxicity of heavy metals, bacteria have clearly been the target choice for producing nanoparticles. The synthesis process begins with cleaning the collected biomass, drying and storing it under optimal conditions for future use. An appropriate amount of biomass is taken and a solution is made with distilled water, to which metal salts are added.

Ag-Au NPs were produced by mixing wet biomass of Fusarium oxysporum to some quantity of HAuCl4 and AgNO3 to make the overall concentration of Ag+ and Au3+ ions equal to 1mm in an aqueous solution. Again, Au-Ag NPs were prepared by taking washed biomass of F. semitectum with distilled water and aqueous HAuCl4 and AgNO3[11]. The synthesis of nanoparticles is done with both extra-cellular as well as intracellular enzymes with the use of simply-cultured and fast-breeding eukaryotes like yeast, where the size of the nanoparticles depends on the conditions for incubation and solutions of the metallic ion[12,13,14].

The method for the formation of nanoparticles varies with respect to the microorganisms. But, they usually follow these steps; first the metal ions get trapped over the surface or inside the cell. Then the trapped metallic ion undergoes a reduction in the presence of enzymes. Microbes impact the formation of minerals in two different ways. Firstly, the microbes are able to modify the composition of the solution such that it becomes supersaturated than it previously was with respect to the specific phase. And secondly, it can impact the formation of minerals by producing organic polymers, which in turn affects the nucleation process by promoting the stabilization of the mineral seeds [15].

The metal ions are bio- reduced by the microbial extract and the formation of nanoparticles is initially seen from the changes in the hue of the solution. The UV-Vis spectrum is also studied at different intervals to see the absorbance and hence the formation of the NPs[16].

2.3 SYNTHESIS FROM WASTE

Nanoparticles are mostly been synthesized from both agricultural and industrial waste material. Waste is generated after harvesting rice husks, and fruits form about 80% of the biomass present in the fields. Wild weeds, sugarcane bagasse, timber dust ,etc. These are generally burned and fall under the category of industrial wastes that are

used as biological sources for nanoparticle synthesis. The advantages of using waste over other methods include a decrease in the use of harmful chemicals, low cost and energy needed and reusing of the waste materials. Both monometallic and alloy nanoparticles were prepared form sugarcane bagasse, bamboo leaves, peels of citrus fruits, and coconut and eggshells.[17-21]

The process of synthesis depends on various factors like pH, temperature, etc, and different wastes have a unique route of synthesis. These tend to have complicated parameters of synthesis depending upon the precursor waste material.[22] Ge and C composite nanoparticles were synthesized by mixing precursors GeO₂ (99.998% Sigma Aldrich) with coffee waste ($C_{25}H_{28}N_6O_7$) and milk powder.[23] The precursors were crushed and mixed with ethanol and finally dried in the atmospheric gas mixture. Also, PCBs powder was leached using ammonium chloride and ammonium solution. This was leftover time and CuO powder was formed. They were centrifuged and finally washed with water and ethanol, this way copper nanoparticles were formed from printed circuit boards.[24].

3. CHARACTERIZATION AND PROPERTIES OF ALLOY NANOPARTICLES

3.1 CHARACTERIZATION

This section makes an attempt to discuss the characterization process of the nanoparticles that are synthesized by different methodologies. Although the process of synthesis may vary, the method of characterization follows a similar path in all cases. Firstly, we see a change in the colour of the aqueous solution(e.g. light brown to dark brown). These colours are seen due to the excitation of the surface plasmon vibrations present in the metallic nanoparticles.[9]. The light brown colour suggests the incomplete reduction due to the less concentration in the plant extract in the solution, whereas the dark brown colour formation is suggestive of the completion of the reduction reaction at high plant extract concentrations in the solution.[8] The formation of nanoparticles can also be monitored by studying the SPR peak of the UV-Vis Spectrometer at regular intervals during the entire course of the reaction. The optical absorption spectrum is reported to show only one band rather than two distinct bands, suggesting the formation of metallic alloy nanoparticles and not bimetallic core/shell nanoparticles.[8,9]. Also a gradual shift in the red direction in the surface plasmon bands is also seen which infer the formation of larger nanoparticles as the reaction progresses.[8,11]. TEM analysis suggests that the particles are predominantly spherical in shape and range 10-50nm in diameter. TEM images also show the nanoparticles to have uniform contrast and hence suggesting the possibility of homogenous electron density. This infers the formation of bimetallic alloy nanoparticles, which is in coherence with the conclusion drawn from the UV-Vis study.[8-11] .XRD studies reveals the bimetallic/alloy nanoparticles have similar structures as their

constituent metals.[10].Most of them have a fcc structure. Since the biomolecules and functional groups responsible for capping and stabilizing and bio-reduction of metal ions varies between plants, microbes and waste materials , the FTIR spectra helps us to identify them . Fungi uses proteins for the process and hence FTIR shows peaks at 1643, 1543, 1405, and 1075 cm–1, at regions of amide I and amide II groups which are characterized by the presence of proteins and enzymes.[11].In the case of plants, there is an abundance of polyphenols and polyols that are present in the extract which are entirely responsible for bio-reduction of the metallic ions and hence shows peaks in that region suggesting the presence of C-H, C-O and OH bonds.[8,11].

3.2 PROPERTIES OF ALLOY NANOPARTICLES

In the case of alloy nanoparticles, two or more metals combine to show unique properties which are the combination of all the constituent metals, which makes these nanoparticles very useful for industrial and technological use. Another advantage of alloy nanoparticles over their monometallic counterparts is the extra degree of freedom present in them. They also have a grater surface area thereby increasing the absorption power.[25]

3.2.1 OPTICAL PROPERTIES

When loosely bound electrons present inside the metallic NPs are exposed to an external electromagnetic radiation, they start to oscillate in a collective fashion. If the frequency of oscillation matches with the source, it gives rise to localized surface plasmon resonance(LSPR).[26]

Studies have shown that the peak position of LSPR depends on the geometry and composition of the nanoparticles. The constituent metals in the nanoparticles have a very strong effect on the optical properties of the nanoparticles. When plasmonic metals which are resonant in the visible region are combined, LSPR is seen to increase, which quenches when metals from the UV region are added.[27] A redshift was seen in the LSPR peak when alloying Cu into Au nanoparticles. It has also been observed that when the geometry of the nanoparticles becomes more complex than spherical, the LSPR shows more peaks, and the nanoparticles became more sensitive.[26, 28]

3.2.2 CATALYTIC PROPERTIES

Alloy nanoparticles have been reported to be more reactive than the monometallic nanoparticles made with the same metal. These depend on the structure and composition of the said nanoparticles.[27] The addition of Au-Ag alloy NPs increases the reaction time for the reduction of Methyl Blue with NaBH₄, and almost 45% reduction was observed as compared to little or no reduction that occurred before adding the nanoparticles.[29] The oxygen reduction reaction was reported to be ten times faster with Pt-Ni alloy nanoparticles as compared to when using only Pt nanoparticles.[30]

3.2.3 MAGNETIC PROPERTIES

After reducing the NPs to a critical size, they start showing single magnetic domain as compared to bulk magnets that have multiple magnetic domains. This limit of size is known as the single-domain limit which is dependent on the geometry and composition of the nanoparticles, and identifies the maximum size possible so that the magnetization only induces unidirectional spin alignment.[28] It has been reported that mixing metals like Fe and Ni, which have big local magnetic moments with metals with strong spin-orbit coupling like Pd and Pt. A bimetallic nanopaticle has a higher magnetic moment and anisotropy.[28,31]

4. <u>APPLICATION OF ALLOY NANOPARTICLES</u>

4.1 IMAGING

A better understanding of the human body has been a long wish of researchers and medical professionals. This comes in hand with the requirement of high-quality imaging tools form macro to the cellular level. For a long time, various imaging techniques like microscopy, MRI and CT-Scan have been used for imaging. As an improvement, the optical properties of nanoparticles are put into use for bioimaging.[32,33,34] It has been reported that multimodal contrast agents or MCAs which are based on Au-Fe alloys are good for MRI and CT-Scan, as well as SERS imaging simply by administering a biocompatible contrast drug that reportedly does not have any cytotoxicity, and accumulates in tumors by EPR effect as compared to regular contrast agents which comprise of metals like Fe and Au. Such kind of MCAs requires a simple method of synthesis without the involvement of any toxic chemicals.(magneto-plasmonic). Another report suggests that nanoparticles that are used as probes for bioimaging have properties such as better dispersion in solutions or intracellular environments, higher degree of stability, better analytical signals and decline in cytotoxicity.[35,36,37] Alloy nanoparticles such as Fe-Ni, which demonstrate superior magnetic properties are used in MRI for better brightness in the results.[38]

4.2 PHOTOCATALYTIC APPLICATIONS

Metals like Pd, Rh and Pt when hybridized with Au and Cu which are plasmonic in the visible region gives us a unique opportunity to create novel photocatalysts. This has allowed to successfully derive bimetallic heterostructures that serve specific functions. The advantages of hybridization are two folds, firstly, it allows the unique combination of light absorbing properties of Au or Ag and the catalytic activity of Pd or Pt. Secondly, hybridization of cheaper metals like Copper with Gold has shown to outperform both Au and Cu in reactions like oxidation of benzyl alcohol.[39,40] Furthermore, trimetallic nanoparticles have been seen to possess even higher catalytic properties as compared to their mono and bimetallic counterparts. Ag-Au-Pt and Au-Pd-Pt nanoparticles when used instead of Pd-Pt or Au-Pt for the oxidation of methanol, the trimetallic nanoparticles showed much greater catalytic activity.[41]

4.3 DRUG DELIVERY

This refers to transferring of drugs into the target site accurately, without having any effect on the healthy cells in proximity to the target cells. Systems that are used lack specificity and sometimes have a certain degree of toxicity. Newly developed drug carriers, which are also known as Smart carriers demonstrate an impressive arrays of characteristics, such as specific targeting, controlled release of drug and lower toxicity.[42,43,44] These drug carriers can be customized as per the requirement, by altering the composition and geometry of the nanoparticles.[44] The effects of Fe-Pt core/shell nanoparticles were researched for drug delivery in the thoracic and gastrointestinal regions by filling the hollow part with anti-cancer drug doxorubicin and coating it with a lipid membrane to avoid any kind of leakage. These capsules were guided under the effect of a magnetic field. The final result showed the destruction of almost 70% of the cancer cells. [45]. Quantum dots having fluorescence properties are surface modified with the application of tumor-recognized drugs and molecules to be used for

drug delivery.[46] Building on nanoparticles as a drug delivery system, they have shown great potential for novel vaccine carriers since the activation effect of metal nanoparticles are higher against foreign bodies.[47]

4.4 CANCER THERAPY

Inorganic carriers also serve as therapeutic agents for the treatment of cancer through photothermal therapy, hyperthermia therapy, etc. There has been a study of photothermal therapy by targeting cancerous cells of the mammary glands wherein Fe-Pt nanoparticles were functionalised with folic acid. Upon irradiation with lasers the photothermal effects from the nanoparticles destroyed the plasma membrane of the cancerous cells.[48] Gold nanoparticles also is a great alternative for cancer treatment, since it is a radiosensitizer and is able to convert light into heat.[46]

The therapeutic process of hyperthermia is entirely based on using heat as an agent to destroy malignant or cancerous cells. Studies have shown that tungsten oxide-coated alloy nanoparticles are used for hyperthermia treatment. Magnetic nanoparticles are heated under a magnetic field and channeling them to kill cancer cells. In the study done by Seeman et al.[49], Fe-Pt nanoparticles were annealed at 700°C, to get an amorphous tungsten-oxide layer on the core/shell nanoparticles. Annealing showed to increase the magnetic moment of the nanoparticles, which increased the heating effect which is the most important factor for hyperthermia.[49]

4.5 ANTIBACTERIAL ACTIVITY

Antibiotics, from their genesis were used to treat infections and diseases caused by bacteria and other organisms. With time, along with antibiotics so did the microbes changed and gave rise to newer drug resistant bacteria. Fortunately, with improving technology novel methods to fight bacteria were created. It was seen that metals like silver, copper, gold depending upon their morphology showed antibacterial properties. A study was done with an aqueous solution of metallic nanoparticles with E.coli, which is a gram-negative bacteria. The results showed a reduction in the number of colonies when nanoparticles of different compositions were applied. This study also showed that the alloy of Au-Ag exhibited higher antibacterial activity with respect to pure metals. The positive metal particles get attached to the membrane of the negatively charged bacteria and disintegrate them. The abundance and presence of sulfur and phosphorus inside the bacteria and the affinity of sliver towards them is the main reason for the antibacterial activity of such metals.[50]. This was also confirmed by another research with Cu-Ag nanoparticles against E.coli, which also came to the conclusion that the silver or copper ions that were released by the nanoparticle, attach themselves to the cell wall of the negatively charged bacteria and rupture it, finally resulting in denaturation of the protein and eventually cell death.[51] The overall process of antibacterial activities solely lies in the degradation of the bacterial cell wall, which was supported by the studies mentioned above.[52]. Although, silver has shown a higher degree of antibacterial activity, other metallic alloys such as Cu-Pt also demonstrated bacterial resistance by generating hydroxyl radicals.[53]

CONCLUSION AND FUTURE PRESPECTIVE

The discussion above gives us an abundance of evidence of the superiority of alloy nanoparticles over mono-metallic nanoparticles due to their unique properties that arise from the composition of two or more metals. These properties have shown great potential for industrial applications. The use of metallic alloy nanoparticles in medical fields has also been discussed in this review, and their use to create novel methods for cancer treatment and drug delivery has been acknowledged. These nanoparticles can be further modified by tuning their morphology and composition to create better antibiotics and MCAs, which remains a prospect of future research.

REFERENCES

- Singh, Priyanka, Kim, Yu-Jin, Zhang, Dabing, Yang, Deok-Chun. Biological Synthesis of Nanoparticles from Plants and Microorganisms. Trends in Biotechnology, 2016.
- [2]. Karthik, L., Kirthi, A.V., Ranjan, S., Srinivasan, V.M. Bacterial Synthesis of Nanoparticles and Their Applications. In Biological Synthesis of Nanoparticles and Their Applications, CRC Press, 2020.
- [3]. LiNa Loo, Richard H. Guenther, Steven A. Lommel, and Stefan Franzen, Encapsidation of Nanoparticles by Red Clover Necrotic Mosaic Virus, Journal of the American Chemical Society, 2007.
- [4]. Parihar, P., Singh, S., Singh, R., Rajasheker, G., Rathnagiri, P., Srivastava, R.K., Singh, V.P., Suprasanna, P., Prasad, S.M., Kishor, P.K. An Integrated Transciptomic, Proteomic, Metabolomic Approach to Unravel the Molecular Mechanisms of Metal Stress Tolerance in Plants. In Plant-Metal Interactions, Springer International Publishing: Cham, 2019.
- [5]. Akinsiku, A.A., Dare, E.O., Ajanaku, K.O., Ajani, O.O., Olugbuyiro, J.A.O., Siyanbola, T.O., Ejilude, O., Emetere, M.E. Modeling and Synthesis of Ag and Ag/Ni Allied Bimetallic Nanoparticles by Green Method: Optical and Biological Properties. International Journal of Biomaterials, 2018.
- [6]. Rao, M.D., Pennathur, G. Green synthesis and characterization of cadmium sulphide nanoparticles from Chlamydomonas reinhardtii and their application as photocatalysts. Materials Research Bulletin, 2017.
- [7]. Scarano, G., Morelli, E. Properties of phytochelatin-coated CdS nanocrystallites formed in a marine phytoplanktonic alga (Phaeodactylumtricornutum, Bohlin) in response to Cd. Plant Science, 2003.
- [8]. Amina, M., Al Musayeib, N.M., Alarfaj, N.A., El-Tohamy, M.F., Al-Hamoud, G.A. Antibacterial and Immunomodulatory Potentials of Biosynthesized Ag, Au, Ag-Au

Bimetallic Alloy Nanoparticles Using the Asparagus racemosus Root Extract. Nanomaterials, 2020.

- [9]. Mondal S, Roy N, Laskar RA, Sk I, Basu S, Mandal D, Begum NA. Biogenic synthesis of Ag, Au and bimetallic Au/Ag alloy nanoparticles using aqueous extract of mahogany (Swietenia mahogani JACQ.) leaves. Colloids Surf B Biointerfaces, 2011.
- [10]. S.S. Godipurge, S. Yallappa, Naveen J. Biradar, J.S. Biradar, B.L. Dhananjaya, Gajanan Hegde, K. Jagadish, Gurumurthy Hegde, A facile and green strategy for the synthesis of Au, Ag and Au–Ag alloy nanoparticles using aerial parts of R. hypocrateriformis extract and their biological evaluation, Enzyme and Microbial Technology, 2016.
- [11]. Satyajyoti Senapati, Absar Ahmad, Mohammad I. Khan, Murali Sastry, and Rajiv Kumar, Extracellular Biosynthesis of Bimetallic Au–Ag Alloy Nanoparticles, Small, 2005.
- [12]. Deplanche, K., Merroun, M. L., Casadesus, M., Tran, D. T., Mikheenko, I. P., Bennett, J. A., Zhu, J., Jones, I. P., Attard, G. A., Wood, J., Selenska-Pobell, S., & Macaskie, L. E. Microbial synthesis of core/shell gold/palladium nanoparticles for applications in green chemistry. Journal of the Royal Society, Interface, 2012.
- [13]. Gomez-Bolivar, J., Mikheenko, I.P., Orozco, R.L., Sharma, S., Banerjee, D., Walker, M., Hand, R.A., Merroun, M.L., Macaskie, L.E. Synthesis of Pd/Ru Bimetallic Nanoparticles by Escherichia coli and Potential as a Catalyst for Upgrading 5-Hydroxymethyl Furfural Into Liquid Fuel Precursors. Frontiers In Microbiology, 2019.
- [14]. Tuo, Y., Liu, G., Dong, B., Yu, H., Zhou, J., Wang, J., Jin, R. Microbial synthesis of bimetallic PdPt nanoparticles for catalytic reduction of 4-nitrophenol. Environmental Science and Pollution Research International, 2017.
- [15]. Li, Xiangqian, Xu, Huizhong, Chen, Zhe-Sheng, Chen, Guofang. Biosynthesis of Nanoparticles by Microorganisms and Their Applications. Journal Of Nanaomaterials, 2011.
- [16]. Sinha, Sankar Narayan, Paul, Dipak, Halder, Nilu, Sengupta, Dipta, Patra, Samir Kumar. Green synthesis of silver nanoparticles using fresh water green alga

Pithophoraoedogonia(Mont.) Wittrock and evaluation of their antibacterial activity. Applied Nanoscience, 2015.

- [17]. Adelere, I.A., Lateef, A. A novel approach to the green synthesis of metallic nanoparticles: The use of agro-wastes, enzymes, and pigments. Nanotechnology Reviews, 2016.
- [18]. Ali, H.R., Hassaan, M.A. Applications of Bio-waste Materials as Green Synthesis of Nanoparticles and Water Purification. Advanced Materials, 2017.
- [19]. Asghar, Z., Ahmad Poursattar, M., Zahra, M. Agricultural waste biomass-assisted nanostructures: Synthesis and application. Green Processing And Synthesis 2019.
- [20]. Zamare, D., Vutukuru, S.S., Babu, R. Biosynthesis of Nanoparticles from Agro-Waste: A Sustainable Approach. International Journal of Engineering Applied Science And Technology, 2016.
- [21]. Sharma, D., Kanchi, S., Bisetty, K. Biogenic synthesis of nanoparticles: A review. Arabian Journal of Chemistry, 2019.
- [22]. Gahlawat, G., Choudhury, A.R. A review on the biosynthesis of metal and metal salt nanoparticles by microbes. RSC Advances, 2019.
- [23]. Shin, Jae-Hoon; Park, Deok-Hye; Lee, Woo-Jun; Moon, Sang-Hyun; Choi, Jin-Hyeok; Kim, Ji-Hwan; Jang, Jae-Sung; Kim, Sung-Beom; Park, Kyung-Won. Coffee waste-derived one-step synthesis of a composite structure with Ge nanoparticles surrounded by amorphous carbon for Li-ion batteries. Journal of Alloys and Compounds, 2022.
- [24]. Seif El-Nasr, Rania, Abdelbasir, S.M., Kamel, Ayman H., Hassan, Saad S.M. Environmentally friendly synthesis of copper nanoparticles from waste printed circuit boards. Separation and Purification Technology, 2020.
- [25]. Sharma, Gaurav, Kumar, Amit, Sharma, Shweta, Naushad, Mu., Prakash Dwivedi, Ram, AL Othman, Zeid A., Mola, Genene Tessema. Novel development of nanoparticles to bimetallic nanoparticles and their composites: A review. Journal of King Saud University – Science,2017.

- [26]. Thota, Sravan, Wang, Yongchen, Zhao, Jing. Colloidal Au-Cu Alloy Nanoparticles: Synthesis, Optical Properties and Applications. Materials Chemistry Frontiers, 2018.
- [27]. Huynh, Kim-Hung, Pham, Xuan-Hung, Kim, Jaehi, Lee, Sang Hun, Chang, Hyejin, Rho, Won-Yeop, Jun, Bong-Hyun. Synthesis, Properties, and Biological Applications of Metallic Alloy Nanoparticles. International Journal of Molecular Sciences, 2020.
- [28]. Gilroy, Kyle D., Ruditskiy, Aleksey, Peng, Hsin-Chieh, Qin, Dong, Xia, Younan. Bimetallic Nanocrystals: Syntheses, Properties, and Applications. Chemical Reviews, 2016.
- [29]. Singh, Priti, Gupta, Rohit Kumar, Shrivastav, Archana, Bhadwal, Akhshay Singh, Shrivastav, B.R., Tripathi, Ravi Mani. Fungal biomolecules assisted biosynthesis of Au–Ag alloy nanoparticles and evaluation of their catalytic property. IET Nanobiotechnology, 2015.
- [30]. Loza, Kateryna, Heggen, Marc, Epple, Matthias. Synthesis, Structure, Properties, and Applications of Bimetallic Nanoparticles of Noble Metals. Advanced Functional Materials, 2020.
- [31]. Bansmann, J., Baker, S., Binns, C., Blackman, J.A., Bucher, J.-P., Dorantes-Dávila, J., Dupuis, V., Favre, L., Kechrakos D., Kleibert A., et al. Magnetic and Structural Properties of Isolated and Assembled Clusters. Surface Science Reports, 2005.
- [32]. Chen, Y., Ding, L., Song, W., Yang, M., Ju, H. Protein-specific Raman imaging of glycosylation on single cells with zone-controllable SERS effect. Chemical Science, 2016.
- [33]. Zong, C., Xu, M., Xu, L.-J.,Wei, T., Ma, X., Zheng, X.-S., Hu, R., Ren, B. Surface-Enhanced Raman Spectroscopy for Bioanalysis: Reliability and Challenges. Chemical Reviews, 2018.
- [34]. Kang, B., Austin, L., El-Sayed, M.A. Real-Time Molecular Imaging throughout the Entire Cell Cycle by Targeted Plasmonic-Enhanced Rayleigh/Raman Spectroscopy. Nano Letters, 2012.

- [35]. Martynenko, I.V., Litvin, A., Purcell-Milton, F., Baranov, A., Fedorov, A.V., Gun'Ko, Y.K. Application of semiconductor quantum dots in bioimaging and biosensing. Journal of Material Chemistry B. 2017.
- [36]. Shukla, S., Priscilla, A., Banerjee, M., Bhonde, R.R., Ghatak, J., Satyam, P.V., Sastry, M. Porous Gold Nanospheres by Controlled Transmetalation Reaction: A Novel Material for Application in Cell Imaging. Chemistry of Materials, 2005.
- [37]. Wang, C., Xu, L., Xu, X., Cheng, H., Sun, H., Lin, Q., Zhang, C. Near infrared Ag/Au alloy nanoclusters: Tunable photoluminescence and cellular imaging. Journal of Colloid and Interface Science, 2014.
- [38]. Chou, S.-W., Liu, C.-L., Liu, T.-M., Shen, Y.-F., Kuo, L.-C., Wu, C.-H., Hsieh, T.-Y., Wu, P.-C., Tsai, M.-R., Yang, C.-C., et al. Infrared-active quadruple contrast FePt nanoparticles for multiple scale molecular imaging. Biomaterials, 2016.
- [39]. Kim, D., Resasco, J., Yu, Y., Asiri, A. M., Yang, P. Synergistic Geometric and Electronic Effects for Electrochemical Reduction of Carbon Dioxide using Gold-Copper Bimetallic Nanoparticles. Nature Communications, 2014.
- [40]. Xu, Z., Lai, E., Shao-Horn, Y., Hamad-Schifferli, K. Compositional Dependence of the Stability of AuCu Alloy Nanoparticles. Chemical Communications, 2012.
- [41]. Thongthai, K., Pakawanit, P., Chanlek, N., Kim, J.-H., Ananta, S., Srisombat, L. Ag/Au/Pt trimetallic nanoparticles with defects: Preparation, characterization, and electrocatalytic activity in methanol oxidation. Nanotechnology, 2017.
- [42]. Iqbal M.T., Halasz K., Bhatia D. Metallic Nanoparticles for Targeted Drug Delivery. Nanomaterial Chemistry and Technology, 2017.
- [43]. Khodabandehloo, H., Zahednasab, H., Hafez, A.A. Nanocarriers Usage for Drug Delivery in Cancer Therapy. Iranian Journal of Cancer Prevention, 2016.
- [44]. Lombardo, D., Kiselev, M.A., Caccamo, M.T. Smart Nanoparticles for Drug Delivery Application: Development of Versatile Nanocarrier Platforms in Biotechnology and Nanomedicine. Journal of Nanomaterials, 2019.

- [45]. T. Fuchigami, R. Kawamura, Y. Kitamoto, M. Nakagawa and Y. Namiki, A magnetically guided anti-cancer drug delivery system using porous FePt capsules, Biomaterials, 2012.
- [46]. Zhou, Q., Zhang, L.,Wu, H. Nanomaterials for cancer therapies. Nanotechnology Reviews 2017.
- [47]. Zhu, M., Wang, R., Nie, G. Applications of nanomaterials as vaccine adjuvants. Human Vaccines And Immunotheraputics, 2014.
- [48]. Chen CL, Kuo LR, Lee SY, et al. Photothermal cancer therapy via femtosecond-laserexcited FePt nanoparticles. Biomaterials, 2013.
- [49]. Seemann KM, Luysberg M, Révay Z, Kudejova P, Sanz B, Cassinelli N, Loidl A, Ilicic K, Multhoff G, Schmid TE. Magnetic heating properties and neutron activation of tungstenoxide coated biocompatible FePt core-shell nanoparticles. Journal of Controlled Release, 2015.
- [50]. Tabrizi, N. S., Tazikeh, M., Shahgholi, N. Antibacterial Properties of Au-Ag Alloy Nanoparticles. International Journal of Green Nanotechnology, 2012.
- [51]. Mayur Valodkar, Shefaly Modi, Angshuman Pal, Sonal Thakore. Synthesis and antibacterial activity of Cu, Ag and Cu–Ag alloy nanoparticles: A green approach, Materials Research Bulletin, 2011.
- [52]. Guo, Z., Chen, Y., Wang, Y.-H., Jiang, H., Wang, X. Advances and challenges in metallic nanomaterial synthesis and antibacterial applications. Journal of Material Chemistry B, 2020.
- [53]. Zhang, X., Jiang, X., Croley, T.R., Boudreau, M.D., He, W., Cai, J., Li, P., Yin, J.-J. Ferroxidase-like and antibacterial activity of PtCu alloy nanoparticles. Journal of Environmental Science And Health, 2019.



PAPER NAME	AUTHOR
MANUSCRIPT - Copy.docx	Arkopriatim Chakvorty
WORD COUNT 2968 Words	CHARACTER COUNT 16872 Characters
PAGE COUNT 15 Pages	FILE SIZE 29.0KB
SUBMISSION DATE	REPORT DATE
May 26, 2022 5:06 PM GMT+5:30	May 26, 2022 5:07 PM GMT+5:30

• 5% Overall Similarity

The combined total of all matches, including overlapping sources, for each database.

- 1% Internet database
- Crossref database
- 2% Submitted Works database
- 4% Publications database
- Crossref Posted Content database

• Excluded from Similarity Report

• Bibliographic material